
 

                                                           
    

 
 
 

Licensing/Gambling Hearing 
 

To: Councillors Mason, Wells and Pavlovic 
 

Date: Monday, 26 February 2018 
 

Time: 10.00 am 
 

Venue: The King Richard III Room (GO49) - West Offices 
 

A G E N D A 
1. Chair   
 

To elect a Member to act as Chair of the meeting. 
 
2. Introductions   
 
3. Declarations of Interest   
 

At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare: 
 

 any personal interests not included on the Register of Interests  

 any prejudicial interests or  

 any disclosable pecuniary interests 
 

which they may have in respect of business on this agenda. 
 
4. Minutes  (pages 9-34) 
 

To approve and sign the minutes of Licensing Hearings held on: 
 

 8 February 2018 

 9 November 2017 

 2 November 2017 

 4 September 2017 

 21 August 2017 

 17 July 2017 

 26 June 2017 
 
5. The Determination of an Application by Revolucion de Cuba 

Ltd for a Premises License (Section 18(3)(a)) in respect of 
New Street, York, YO1 8ND (CYC-060019)  (pages 35-159) 



 

Democracy Officer: 
 
Name: Becky Holloway 
 
Telephone – (01904) 553978 
Email  - becky.holloway@york.gov.uk 
 
For more information about any of the following, please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer above: 

 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats. 
 
 

  

  
Distribution: 

 
Members of Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee  
Licensing Officer 
Legal Services 
Applicant  
Representors 
Press, Library. 

 

mailto:becky.holloway@york.gov.uk


 
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB – COMMITTEES  
 PROCEDURE FOR HEARINGS 

 
Introduction 

 
The procedure outlined below will be followed at all Licensing Hearings.  
 
As Licensing Hearings are quasi-judicial the Sub-Committee will, in 
effect, act like a Court and the rules of natural justice will apply. The 
Sub-Committee will be guided by legal principles in determining whether 
evidence is both relevant and fairly admitted. Committee Members have 
a duty to view all evidence presented before them impartially. Members 
of the Licensing Sub-Committee have all received relevant training and 
are used to making decisions of this type. No matter how strong local 
opinion may be, Committee Members can only make decisions based on 
relevant licensing issues as set out before the Sub-Committee in 
determining applications.  
 
The hearing will be in public session. However, the Sub-Committee may 
exclude the public from a hearing if it considers it in the public interest to 
do so. However, the decision will be made in private. 
 
The purpose of the hearing is 

 To enable those with a right to appear to advance their point of 
view and to test the case of their opponents 

 To assist the Sub-Committee to gather evidence and 
understand the relevant issues 

 
In view of the requirement to hold hearings within specified times, 
the Licensing Authority will generally be unable to enter into 
discussions to identify dates convenient to all parties concerned. In 
exceptional circumstances, the Licensing Authority will consider 
applications to adjourn hearings to a later date. 
 
Representations at Licensing Hearings 
 
The Applicant, Ward Councillors, and Representors who have made 
written submissions will be allowed to speak at the Sub-Committee. At 

Page 1 Agenda Item 1



any hearing of an application, the Applicant and any Representors shall 
attend in person wherever possible. Any party to a hearing may be 
assisted or represented by any person, legally or otherwise.  
  
All parties will be given a fair hearing and each party will have the same 
amount of time in which to address the Sub-Committee. A time limit has 
been set because of the pressures on the Sub-Committees to hear so 
many applications in a short period of time. Each party will have 15 
minutes to address the Sub-Committee, give any further 
information, and call any witnesses. If any party considers this time to 
be insufficient then a request in writing may be made to the Democracy 
Officer for an extension of time at least 2 working days before the 
hearing. However, this will not be automatically granted and will be at the 
discretion of the Sub-Committee. 
 
The Sub-Committee may take into account any documentary evidence 
or other information in support of the application, representations or 
notice, either before the hearing or, with the consent of all other parties, 
at the hearing. 
 
If any Representors fail to attend the hearing, the Sub-Committee will 
normally proceed but will consider their written objection and hear and 
consider any evidence and argument in relation to it put forward by the 
Applicant. In considering written evidence in the absence of a 
Representor, appropriate weight will be attached, given that the person 
cannot be questioned by the Applicant and Members.  
 
The Sub-Committee is required to disregard any information given 
or evidence produced by a party or witness which is not relevant to 
the application, representations, or notice, and the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. Duplication should be avoided. Comments must 
be confined to those points already made, although the parties may 
extend or expand on their written submissions. The Sub-Committee will 
have read and familiarised themselves with all the written submissions 
and the issues prior to the hearing, and therefore do not require the 
points to be repeated or made at length. The Applicant and 
Representors cannot raise substantial new information at a hearing 
which has not been seen previously by the other parties. 
 
A Representor may not introduce any new ground or objection not 
referred to in the written submission. Additional representations which do 
not amount to an amplification of the original representation may not be 
made at the hearing. 

Page 2



 
Any person behaving in a disruptive manner will be asked to leave the 
hearing. If this does occur, that person may, before the end of the 
hearing, submit in writing any information which they would have been 
entitled to give orally. 

 
Procedure prior to the Hearing 
 
The Members sitting on the Sub-Committee will meet prior to the hearing 
to note the matters that are to be presented. They will only be 
accompanied by the Democracy Officer and Legal Advisor (if present). 
Attention will only be drawn to the nature of the application and the 
premises or person to which it relates. The actual application will not be 
discussed.  
 
At any hearing of an application, the Licensing Officer, the Applicant and 
any Representors or representatives will report to reception and be 
asked to wait in reception until the democracy officer calls them through 
to the committee room.  
Procedure at the Hearing 
 
1. Members of the Sub-Committee will appoint a chair. 
 
2. The Chair introduces the Committee Members and officers 

[Democracy Officer, Legal Advisor to the committee (if present) 
and the Licensing Officer], welcomes the Applicant and 
Representors (or their representatives), and establishes the 
identity of all who will be taking part. 

 
3. The Chair will explain to the parties the procedure that will be 

followed at the hearing. 
 
4. The Chair will proceed with the order of business on the agenda. 
 
5. When the agenda item relating to the application is reached, the 

Chair will invite the Licensing Officer to present the application. 
 
6. The Licensing Officer outlines the application, confirms the 

application details, introduces the report and gives an update on 
any recent changes. 

 

Page 3



7. The Chair will invite Committee Members, the Applicant and 
Representors (or representatives) to ask the Licensing Officer 
questions to clarify any points raised in the report. 

 
8. The Chair will ask the Applicant (or their representative) to present 

their case. 
 
9. The Applicant (or their representative) will present their case and 

may call any witnesses to support their case [maximum 15 
minutes]. 

 
10. The Chair will invite the Representors (or their representative) in 

the following order to ask questions of the Applicant (or their 
representative) and/or witnesses [maximum 5 minutes each party] 

 
(i) Police 
(ii) Other Responsible Authorities 
(iii) Ward Councillors 
(iv) Interested Parties 

 
11. The Chair will invite the Committee Members to ask questions of 

the Applicant (or their representative) and/or witnesses. 
 
12. The Chair will invite the Representors (or their representative) in 

the following order to state the nature of their interest in the matter, 
present their case and call any witnesses to support their case 
[maximum 15 minutes each party] 

 
(i) Police 
(ii) Other Responsible Authorities 
(iii) Ward Councillors 
(iv) Interested Parties 

 
13. The Chair will invite the Applicant to ask questions of each 

Representor (or their representative) and/or their witnesses after 
each presentation [maximum 5 minutes per Representor]. 

 
14. The Chair will invite the Committee Members to ask questions of 

each Representor (or their representative) and/or their witnesses 
after each presentation. 

 

Page 4



15. The Chair will invite the Representors (or their representative) in 
the following order to summarise their case [maximum 5 minutes 
each party] 

 
(i) Police 
(ii) Other Responsible Authorities 
(iii) Ward Councillors 
(iv) Interested Parties 

 
16. The Chair will invite the Applicant (or their representative) to 

summarise their case [maximum 5 minutes]. 
 
17. The Chair will provide the Sub-Committee with a final opportunity 

to seek clarification from any of the parties on any points raised, or 
seek advice from the Licensing Officer on policy, or from the Legal 
Advisor (if present) on law and jurisdiction. 

 
18. When all the evidence has been heard, the Chair will declare the 

hearing closed and ask the Licensing Officer, the Applicant and 
Representors (or their representatives) plus any witnesses present 
to leave the committee room and wait in reception while the Sub-
Committee considers the evidence.  

 
Procedure after the Hearing 
 
19. If the Sub-Committee wish to seek further clarification on the 

evidence given, the Democracy Officer will invite all parties back 
into the committee room. 

 
20. If possible, and for all hearings under:-  

 

 section 35 or 39 which is in respect of an application made at 
the same time as an application for conversion of an existing 
licence under paragraph 2 of Schedule 8 (determination of 
application under section 34 or 37) 

 section 85 which is in respect of an application made at the 
same time as an application for conversion of an existing club 
certificate under paragraph 14 of Schedule 8 (determination of 
application under section 85) 

 section 105(2)(a) (counter notice following police objection to 
temporary event notice) 

 section 167(5)(a) (review of premises licence following closure 
order) 

Page 5



 paragraph 4(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application 
for conversion of existing licence) 

 paragraph 16(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application 
for conversion of existing club certificate) 

 paragraph 26(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application 
by holder of a justices’ licence for grant of personal licence) 

 
the Sub-Committee will make a decision on conclusion of the 
hearing and only the Democracy Officer and the Legal Advisor to 
the Sub-Committee (if present) will remain in the room with the 
Committee Members. These officers will not comment on the 
merits of the application, but will be present to provide advice on 
legal and procedural points and to record the decision.  

 
21. If the decision has been made, all the parties will be invited back 

into the committee room by the Democracy Officer. The Chair will 
announce the decision including reasons together with, if 
appropriate, details of any conditions to be attached to the grant of 
the licence. This decision will then be communicated in writing to 
the Applicant and Representors within 3 working days of the 
hearing. There can be no further questions or statements. 

 
22. For all other hearings not listed above, if the Sub-Committee is 

unable to make a decision on the day of the hearing, the decision 
will be made within 5 working days beginning with the day or the 
last day on which the hearing was held. The Democracy Officer 
will inform the parties that they are no longer required and the 
decision will be communicated in writing to the Applicant and 
Representors within 3 working days of the decision being made. 

 
23. The notification will include information about the rights of appeal 

against the determination made. 

Page 6



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

 

Further information about what’s being discussed at this 
meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for 
viewing online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of 
individual reports or the full agenda are available from Democratic 
Services.  Contact the Democracy Officer whose name and contact 
details are given on the agenda for the meeting. Please note a 
small charge may be made for full copies of the agenda 
requested to cover administration costs. 
 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  
The meeting will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue 
with an induction hearing loop.  We can provide the agenda or 
reports in large print, electronically (computer disk or by email), in 
Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take longer than others 
so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours for 
Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close 
by or a sign language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact 
the Democracy Officer whose name and contact details are given 
on the order of business for the meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in 
another language, either by providing translated information or an 
interpreter providing sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone 
York (01904) 551550 for this service. 
 

 
 

Page 7



Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

 Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the 
committees to which they are appointed by the Council; 

 Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and 
reports for the committees which they report to; and 

 Public libraries, Council Receptions and the Press get copies 
of all public agenda/reports.  

 Applicant  

 Representors & the relevant Responsible Authorities 

Page 8



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Licensing/Gambling Hearing 

Date 8 February 2018 

Present Councillors Funnell, Mason and Wells 

  

 

29. Chair  
 
Resolved:  That Cllr Mason be appointed as Chair for the 

hearing. 
 
 

30. The Determination of an Application by Revolucion de 
Cuba Ltd for Premises License (Section 18(3)(a)) in respect 
of New Street, York, YO1 8ND. (CYC-060019)  
 
The Chair reported that a procedural error had come to light that 
morning as the Applicant Company had been served with 
papers instead of their solicitors. The Applicants’ solicitors had 
been contacted by telephone and confirmed to the Clerk that 
they were unaware of the hearing. 
 
The hearing was adjourned until 10am on 26 February to enable 
Notice to be served correctly. All parties in attendance were 
informed of this date at the hearing. 
 
 

 
 
Cllr A. Mason, Chair 
[The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 10.05 am]. 

Page 9 Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Licensing/Gambling Hearing 

Date 9 November 2017 

Present Councillors Douglas (Chair), Looker and Reid 

  

 

25. Chair  
 
Resolved:  That Cllr Douglas be appointed as Chair for the 

hearing. 
 
 

26. Introductions  
 
 

27. Declarations of Interest  
 
Members were asked to declare any personal interests not 
included on their Register of Interests, any prejudicial interests 
or any disclosable pecuniary interests which they may have in 
respect of business on the agenda. 
 
No additional interests were declared. 
 
 

28. The Determination of an Application by Deighton Lodge Ltd 
for a premises license Section 18(3)(a) in respect of 
Deighton Lodge, Rush Farm, York Road, Deighton, York, 
YO19 6HQ. (CYC-059320)  
 
Members considered an application by Deighton Lodge Ltd. For 
a premises license Section 18(3)(a) in respect of Deighton 
Lodge, Rush Farm, York Road, Deighton, York, YO19 6HQ. 
 
In considering this application and the representations 
made, the Sub-Committee concluded that the following 
licensing objectives were relevant to this Hearing: 
 
1. The prevention of crime and disorder. 
 
2. Public safety. 
 

Page 11



3.  The prevention of public nuisance 
 
4. The protection of children from harm 
 
In coming to their decision, the Sub-Committee took into 
consideration all the evidence and submissions that were 
presented, and determined their relevance to the issues raised 
and the above licensing objectives, including: 
 
1. The application form.  
 
2. The Licensing Officer’s report and her comments made at 

the Hearing. She outlined the application and advised that 
there had been four representations received, that Public 
Protection and North Yorkshire Police had agreed mediated 
representations and that consultation had been carried out in 
accordance with the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
3. The applicant’s representations at the Hearing and those of 

Mr Alan Moore, her representative. The applicant advised 
that Deighton Lodge Ltd currently hosted 15 weddings a 
year licensed through temporary event notices (TENs) and 
that a planning application had been submitted to increase 
this number to 30 which would require a permanent licence. 
The applicant explained that she wished to serve food and 
drink in the garden upon the arrival of guests and to provide 
live music outside during wedding ceremonies and to 
accompany the serving of refreshments. She reported that 
wedding guests supported the local economy and that 
services brought in were sourced locally. The applicant was 
aware of previous complaints leading to a noise abatement 
notice but reported that the disuse of marquees and 
extensive work to the barn had resolved the sound-proofing 
problems and no complaints had since been received. Mr 
Moore reported that sound checks completed in the local 
vicinity during a wedding had confirmed the work had been 
successful. Finally, the applicant explained that she would 
be willing to agree conditions on the license to reduce the 
impact of the business on local residents. 

 
4. The written representations made by Deighton Parish 

Council and Primrose Hill Farm which raised concerns about 
noise and disruption to local residents in the run up to, and 
during, events. 

 

Page 12



5. The representations made by Ms Broomer and Mr Morris in 
writing and by Ms Broomer and Cllr Mercer (on behalf of Mr 
Morris) at the Hearing. Cllr Mercer stated that noise 
nuisance came from guests’ cars arriving and departing as 
well as from music during the event, and that the ambition to 
contain events solely within the barn was unrealistic as it 
was likely guests would wish to go outside during the 
evening. Ms Broomer reported additional problems including 
deliveries arriving at neighbouring addresses, poor security 
at the site during the day, several instances of loud music 
late into the night, increased litter, and highway safety 
concerns including a collision outside the venue. It was felt 
that the imposition of conditions would not provide sufficient 
mitigation of these issues. 

 
6. The mediated representations made by North Yorkshire 

Police and CYC Public Protection who, combined, 
recommended a total of 12 conditions to reduce the impact 
on local residents including restrictions on time periods in 
which music could be played and food and drink could be 
served. 

 
Having regard to the above evidence and representations 
received, the Sub-Committee considered the steps which were 
available to them to take under Section 18(4) of the Licensing 
Act 2003 which it considered necessary for the promotion of the 
Licensing Objectives: 
 
Option 1:  Grant the licence in the terms applied for. This 

option was rejected. 
 
Option 2:  Grant the licence with modified/additional conditions 

imposed by the licensing committee. This option was 
approved. 

 
Option 3:  Grant the licence to exclude any of the licensable 

activities to which the application relates and 
modify/add conditions accordingly. This option was 
rejected. 

 
Option 4:  Reject the application. This option was rejected. 
 
In coming to their decision of approving the above Option 2 
the Sub-Committee imposed conditions 1-6 recommended 
by North Yorkshire Police and conditions 3-8 as 

Page 13



recommended by CYC Public Protection Unit. The Sub-
Committee also imposed the following additional 
conditions: 
 
Proposed Activity     Timings 
 
Live Music shall be indoors only Friday, Saturday & 

Sunday and Bank 
Holiday Monday  
10:00 – 23:00 

 
Recorded Music shall be indoors only Friday, Saturday & 

Sunday  
10:00 – midnight 

 
Bank Holiday Monday 
10:00 – 23:00 

 
Late Night Refreshment indoors only Friday, Saturday & 

Sunday 
23:00 – midnight 

 
Sale of alcohol (on sales) Friday, Saturday & 

Sunday 
10:00 – midnight 

 
Bank Holiday Monday 
10:00 – 23:00 

Opening times  Friday, Saturday & 
Sunday 
09:00 – 00:30 

 
Bank Holiday Monday 
10:00 – 23:00 
 

 No music (live, recorded, or amplified) to be played outside 
the barn at any time. 
 

 No late-night refreshments to be sold or served outside the 
barn. 

 

 The contact details for the wedding co-ordinator shall be 
provided to Deighton residents prior to any events taking 
place (together with any changes to those details) and the 

Page 14



wedding co-ordinator shall be contactable by Deighton 
residents for the duration of all events held at the venue. 

 
The Sub-Committee took into account the representations 
regarding public nuisance from the premises but felt that the 
imposition of suitable and proportionate conditions would enable 
weddings to continue while protecting local residents. The Sub-
Committee attached great weight to the fact that the Council’s 
Public Protection Unit and Police had not raised concerns that 
the licence should not be granted. They also considered that the 
applicant was able to offer evidence that activity leading to 
previous complaints had since been discontinued or 
appropriately adapted. Concerns raised about the noise of cars 
arriving and departing would be reduced through the earlier 
finish time, and the prevention of serving refreshments and 
playing music outside would minimise nuisance noise to the 
surrounding area. 
 
The Sub-Committee concluded that the application was 
acceptable with the above mandatory and additional conditions 
attached which addressed representations made both in writing 
and at the hearing, as it met all the licensing objectives.  
 
The Sub-Committee made this decision taking into 
consideration the representations, the Licensing Objectives, the 
City of York Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the 
Secretary of State’s Guidance issued under Section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003. 
 
 
 
 
 
Cllr Douglas, Chair 
[The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 11.55 am]. 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Licensing/Gambling Hearing 

Date 2 November 2017 

Present Councillors Crisp, Richardson and Looker 
(Chair) 

  

 
20. Chair  

 
Resolved: That Cllr Looker be appointed as Chair for the hearing. 
 
 

21. Introductions  
 
 

22. Declarations of Interest  
 
Members were asked to declare any personal interests not included on the 
Register of Interests, any prejudicial interests or any disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they may have in respect of business on the agenda. 
 
No additional interests were declared. 
 
 

23. Minutes  
 
The minutes were deferred to a future hearing when those who had been 
present at the meetings were in attendance. 
 
 

24. The Determination of an Application by RJJ Morwood-Leyland for a 
Temporary Event Notice Section 105 (2)(a) in respect of The Crescent 
Community Venue, 8 The Crescent, York, YO24 1AW. (CYC-CYC-
001538)  
 
Members considered an application by Mr RJJ Morwood-Leyland for a 
Temporary Event Notice Section 105(2)(a) in respect of The Crescent 
Community Venue, 8 The Crescent, York, YO24 1AW. 
 

In considering the application and the representations made, the 
Sub-Committee concluded that the following licensing objective 
was relevant to the Hearing:  
 
1. The prevention of public nuisance.  
 
In coming to their decision, the Sub-Committee took into 
consideration all the evidence and submissions that were 

Page 17



presented, and determined their relevance to the issues raised 
and the above licensing objective, including:  
 
1. The application form  
2. The Licensing Officer’s report and her comments made at the 

Hearing. She outlined the application and advised that 
consultation had been carried out in accordance with the 
Licensing Act 2003.  

3. The applicant’s representations at the Hearing and those of his 
representatives Mr Harkirit Singh Bopari and Ms Morwood-
Leyland. They advised that the two events would include an 
International DJ night held on Friday and a student night held 
on Saturday. It was explained that the applicant had 
acknowledged mistakes made at a previous event regarding 
sound control that led to a complaint from a local resident and 
that steps had been put in place to mitigate the likelihood of 
this reoccurring. These steps were included in the applicant’s 
written representations and included insulation and sealing of a 
firedoor, the recruitment of an in-house sound engineer, and 
new electronic equipment for undertaking accurate sound 
checks. It was explained that the event in question had been 
fully booked out and that not going ahead would have negative 
consequences for the venue and the event’s promoter.  

4. The representations made by the Environmental Protection 
Unit at City of York Council, in writing and at the hearing. They 
stated that they had been encouraged by the attitude of the 
applicant and what had been done to improve sound control to 
date. However, they considered that work was still needed to 
soundproof the roof and to replace the firedoor and that there 
was consequently a risk of noise nuisance during the proposed 
events. They explained that if a noise abatement notice was 
served as a result of a complaint on either of the events 
covered by the TEN this would limit the remit of the support 
that the applicant could access from EPU and that the safer 
option would be to postpone the events until after the full 
scheme of works had been completed.  

 
Having regard to the above evidence and representations 
received, the Sub-Committee considered the steps which were 
available to them to take under Section 105 of the Licensing Act 
2003 as it considered necessary for the promotion of the Licensing 
Objectives:  
 
Option 1: Modify the terms of the TEN if agreed by the relevant 
persons and the applicant prior to the hearing being held or 
dispensed with pursuant to S106. This option was rejected, 
 

Page 18



Option 2: Issue a counter notice refusing authorisation of the 
TEN. This option was rejected, 
 
Option 3: Choose not to issue a counter notice. This option was 
approved. 
 
In coming to their decision of approving the above Option 3 the 
Sub-Committee was satisfied that allowing the temporary event to 
take place would not undermine the licensing objective of 
preventing public nuisance. The Sub-Committee was mindful that 
only one formal complaint had been received in the previous two 
years and that the applicant had acknowledged the mistakes 
made and had put in place measures to reduce the likelihood of 
these reoccurring. The Sub-Committee also took into account 
confirmation from the EPU representative that through use of a 
noise limiter the noise level of the proposed event could be 
controlled by the applicant, and the applicant’s undertaking to 
carry out noise monitoring during the event using a noise limiter 
set at an appropriate level to seek to prevent noise nuisance. The 
Sub-Committee was satisfied that although the applicant would not 
have completed the programmed soundproofing works to the roof 
and fire door by the time of this event, the applicant had 
demonstrated that he would manage the noise levels responsibly 
and that the applicant understood the serious consequences for 
any future events should any public nuisance occur during this 
event.  
 
The Sub-Committee made this decision taking into consideration 
the representations, the Licensing Objectives, the City of York 
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the Secretary of 
State’s Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003.  
 
The Sub-Committee also asked the applicant to note the following 
points:  

 An earlier submission of the TEN application with a longer 
lead-in time for the event may have made it easier for the 
applicant to mitigate against the points raised by the 
objector.  

 Should the event, licensed under the TEN, lead to a noise 
abatement notice being served this would have serious 
consequences for the business and would reduce the level 
of support available to the applicant from EPU officers. 

 
 
Councillor Looker, Chair 
[The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 11.35 am]. 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Licensing Hearing 

Date 4 September 2017 

Present Councillors Gillies, Orrell and Taylor 

  

 

16. Chair  
 

Resolved:  That Councillor Gillies be appointed to Chair the 
meeting.  

 
17. Introductions  

 

18. Declarations of Interest  
 

Members were asked to declare any personal interests not 
included on the Register of Interests, any prejudicial interests or 
any disclosable pecuniary interests which they may have in 
respect of business on the agenda.  
 
Councillor Gillies declared a personal, non-pecuniary interest as 
one of the representors had been Leader of the Labour Group 
when he was Leader of the Conservative Group.  
 

19. The Determination of an Application by Make it York for a 
Premises Licence Section 18 (3) (a) in respect of Shambles 
Market, York, YO1 8RY (CYC-058836)  
 

Members considered an application by Make it York for a 
Premises Licence Section 18(3)(a) in respect of Shambles 
Market, York, YO1 8RY.  
 
In considering the application and the representations made, the 
Sub-Committee concluded that the following licensing objectives 
were particularly relevant to this hearing: 
 

 The prevention of public nuisance 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 
 
In coming to their decision, the Sub-Committee took into 
consideration all the evidence and submissions that were 

Page 21



presented, and determined their relevance to the issues raised 
and the above licensing objectives, including: 
 

1. The application form, in particular the existing licence 
conditions and the additional steps agreed to be taken by 
the applicant to promote the four licensing objectives. 

 
2. The Licensing Officer’s report and her comments made at 

the Hearing. She outlined the application and advised that 
the premises were inside the special policy area (as 
approved by Full Council on 27 March 2014) and that 
consultation had been carried out in accordance with the 
Licensing Act 2003.  

 
3. The applicant’s representations at the Hearing and those 

of Chris Price – Head of City Centre for Make it York. 
They advised that they were aware this application fell 
within the special policy area and the implications of this. 
With this in mind they had consulted with North Yorkshire 
Police and the Licensing Officer to agree additional 
conditions listed on the application form.  
 

4. The three written representations received from residents.  
 

In respect of the proposed licence, the Sub-Committee had to 
determine whether to take any of the steps mentioned under 
Section 35(4) that it considered necessary for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives. Having regard to the above evidence 
and representations received, the Sub-Committee considered 
the steps which were available to them to take under Section 
18(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 as it considered necessary for 
the promotion of the Licensing Objectives: 
 
Option 1:  Grant the licence in the terms applied for and 
including any applicable mandatory conditions of the Licensing 
Act 2003. This option was rejected.  
 
Option 2: Grant the licence with modified/additional conditions 
imposed by the licensing committee including any applicable 
mandatory conditions as set out in ss19, 20 and 21 of the 
Licensing Act 2003. This option was approved with the 
following modified conditions: 
 

 All alcohol sales to be ancillary to meals 

 No off sales to be permitted 

Page 22



 Hours of operation will be 12:00-21:00 for all licensable 
activities 

 Toilets to be opened until 21:00 for the duratrion of all 
events 

 The licensable area will be as shown on the amended 
map (attached).  

 
Option 3:  Grant the licence to which the application relates and 
modify/add conditions accordingly to include any applicable 
mandatory conditions of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended. 
This option was rejected. 
 
Option 4:  Reject the application. This option was rejected as 
the Sub-Committee saw no reason to reject the application 
based on the Licensing Objectives and City of York Council 
Licensing Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted the residents’ concerns as to the 
potential effect of the premises on the special policy area. 
Having applied the policy, the Sub-Committee noted that the 
applicant was required to establish that the application would 
not add to or increase issues already experienced in the area. 
The Sub-Committee considered this point very carefully and in 
coming to their decision to approve Option 2, the Sub-
Committee was mindful of the fact that no representations had 
been received from responsible authorities. They had concerns 
over the ‘cobbled area’ outside of the food court attracting 
groups of people who would be vertical drinking and so 
amended the licensable area and conditioned that alcohol only 
be served ancillary to meals to prevent vertical drinking and to 
ensure that the premises would be food-led. They felt that off 
sales were not suitable in this part of the City Centre as they 
may contribute to anti social behavior issues. Hours of operation 
were reduced to 12:00-21:00 for all licensable activities, given 
that this was a residential area and to minimise public nuisance. 
It was conditioned that the public toilets on Silver Street be 
opened for the duration of all events running to 21:00, with an 
informative that toilets could be opened at all other times alcohol 
was being served to reduce instances of anti-social behavior as 
detailed in the written representations.  
 
The Sub-Committee considered that the application with above 
modified and additional conditions would not add to or increase 
issues already experienced in the area or undermine the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. Accordingly, in all of the 

Page 23



circumstances of the case it was felt that the decision of the 
Sub-Committee was reasonable and proportionate. 
All conditions offered by the Applicant in the application, 
including the operating schedule, for granting the premises 
licence under the Licensing Act 2003, shall be included in the 
licence, unless contradictory to the above conditions. 
 
The Sub-Committee concluded that the application was 
acceptable with the above mandatory conditions attached which 
addressed representations made in writing, as it met all the 
licensing objectives. The Sub-Committee made this decision 
taking into consideration the representations, the Licensing 
Objectives, the City of York Council’s Statement of Licensing 
Policy and the Secretary of State’s Guidance issued under 
Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Gillies, Chair 
[The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 11.00 am]. 

Page 24



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Licensing Hearing 

Date 21 August 2017 

Present Councillors Douglas, Mason and Pavlovic 

  

 

11. Chair  
 

Resolved:  That Councillor Mason be appointed to Chair the 
meeting.  

 
12. Introductions  

 

13. Declarations of Interest  
 

Members were asked to declare any personal interests not 
included on the Register of Interests, any prejudicial interests or 
any disclosable pecuniary interests which they may have in 
respect of business on the agenda. None were declared 
 

14. Minutes  
 

Resolved:  That the minutes of the Licensing Hearing held on 26 
June and the Taxi Licensing Hearing held on 17 July 
be approved as a correct record and signed by the 
Chair.  

 

15. Determination of an Application by Mr Shaun Binns & Mrs 
Jamie-Leigh Binns for a Premises Licence Section 18(3)(a) 
in respect of 7 Kings Staith, York, YO1 9SN (CYC-058743)  
 
Members considered an application by Shaun Binns and Mrs 
Jamie-Leigh Binns for a Premises Licence Section 18(3)(a) in 
respect of 7 Kings Staith, York, YO1 9SN.  
 
In considering this application, and the representations made, 
the Sub-Committee concluded that the following licensing 
objectives were relevant to this Hearing: 
 

1. Prevention of public nuisance. 
 

2. Prevention of crime and disorder. 
 

Page 25



In coming to their decision, the Sub-Committee took into 
consideration all the evidence and submissions that were 
presented, and determined their relevance to the issues raised 
and the above licensing objectives, including: 
 

1. The application form.  
 

2. The Licensing Officer’s report and her comments made at 
the Hearing. She outlined the application and advised that 
the premises were inside the special policy area (as 
approved by Full Council on 27 March 2014) and that 
consultation had been carried out in accordance with the 
Licensing Act 2003.  

 
3. The applicants representations at the Hearing. They 

advised that they only intend to serve alcohol from 8 am to 
residents with breakfast, for example a champagne or 
bucks fizz breakfast . Furthermore, the applicants stated 
that they intended to operate the premises as a bistro, that 
all the tables would be waiter/waitress served and that 
they had agreed to all the police requirements regarding 
door staff.  With 30 indoor covers, the premises would not 
be able to accommodate groups of people vertical 
drinking.   
 

4. The representations made in writing and at the hearing by 
a local resident. He felt that the applicant had addressed 
his concerns regarding the serving of alcohol from 8.00 
am as this would be indoors only before 10am.  However, 
he was opposed to vertical drinking and felt that the 
premises should be required to remain as a restaurant. 
 

In respect of the proposed licence, the Sub-Committee had to 
determine whether to take any of the steps mentioned under 
Section 35(4) that it considered necessary for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives.  
 
Having regard to the above evidence and representations 
received, the Sub-Committee considered the steps which were 
available to them to take under Section 18(3) of the Licensing 
Act 2003 as it considered necessary for the promotion of the 
Licensing Objectives: 
 
Option 1: Grant the variation of the licence in the terms applied 
for. This option was rejected.  

Page 26



 
Option 2: Grant the variation of the licence with 
modified/additional conditions imposed by the licensing 
committee. This option was approved.  
 
Option 3: Grant the variation of the licence to exclude any of the 
licensable activities to which the application relates and 
modify/add 
conditions accordingly. This option was rejected.  
 
Option 4: Reject the application. This option was rejected. 
 
In agreeing Option 2, any applicable mandatory conditions of 
the Licensing Act 2003 as amended were imposed on the 
licence together with the 21 conditions proposed by the 
applicant’s operating schedule (as set out in paragraphs 9, 10 
and 11 of the Licensing Officer’s report) subject to the following 
modifications: 
 

 Change 9 b) to: There shall be a minimum of 30 table 
covers available indoors at all times the premises are 
trading. 

 Change 9c) to: ‘Customers shall be served by way of 
waiter/waitress service only’. 
 

The following additional condition was also imposed on the 
licence:   
 

Between the hours of 08:00 and 10:00 each and every 
day alcohol shall only be served ancillary to the provision 
of food. 

The Sub-Committee noted the local resident’s concerns as to 
the potential effect of the premises on the special policy area. 
Having applied the policy, the Sub-Committee noted that the 
applicant was required to establish that the application would 
not add to or increase issues already experienced in the 
area. The Sub-Committee considered this point very carefully 
and determined that given the absence of representations from 
responsible authorities that this was not likely. The Sub-
Committee noted the operating schedule and considered that it 
had received sufficient assurances from the applicant in order to 
have a high level of confidence that the premises would be 
operated responsibly and that the application with the 
mandatory and above modified and additional conditions would 
not add to or increase issues already experienced in the area or 

Page 27



undermine the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
Accordingly, in all of the circumstances of the case it was felt 
that the decision of the Sub-Committee was reasonable and 
proportionate. They reminded the applicant of the necessity of 
complying with all of the conditions. 

The Sub-Committee made this decision taking into 
consideration the representations, the Licensing Objectives, the 
City of York Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the 
Secretary of State’s Guidance issued under Section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003.  

 
 
 
 

 
Councillor Mason, Chair 
[The meeting started at 10:00 and finished at 11:00]. 

Page 28



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Licensing/Gambling Hearing 

Date 17 July 2017 

Present Councillors Hayes, Mason and Looker 

  

 

6. Chair  
 
 

Resolved:  That Councillor Mason be appointed to Chair the 
meeting. 

 

7. Declarations of Interest  
 

Members were asked to declare any personal interests not 
included on the Register of Interests, any prejudicial interests or 
any disclosable pecuniary interests which they may have in 
respect of business on the agenda. None were declared. 
 

8. Exclusion of Press and Public  
 

Resolved:   That the press and public be excluded from the 
meeting during consideration of agenda item 5 
(minute 10 refers) on the grounds that it contained 
information relating to an individual. This information 
is classed as exempt under paragraphs 1 and 2 of 
Schedule 12A to Section 100A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006. 

 

9. Minutes  
 

Resolved:  That the minutes of the Environment Appeals panels 
held on 20 February be approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chair. 

 

10. Appeal against Revocation of Private Hire Driver's Licence  
 

Members considered an appeal against the decision to revoke a 
private hire driver’s licence.  
 

Page 29



Consideration was given to the oral and written representations 
from both parties.  
 
Resolved:  That the decision to revoke the private hire driver’s 

licence be upheld.  
 
Reason:     Having considered all the information before them 

the Sub-Committee felt there were no special 
circumstances to deviate from Council policy in this 
instance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillor Mason, Chair 
[The meeting started at 10.05 am and finished at 11.15 am]. 

Page 30



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Licensing Hearing 

Date 26 June 2017 

Present Councillors Douglas, Mercer and Looker 

  

 

1. Chair  
 

Resolved:  That Councillor Douglas be elected to Chair the 
meeting. 

 

2. Introductions  
 
 

3. Declarations of Interest  
 
Members were asked to declare any personal interests not 
included on the Register of Interests, any prejudicial interests or 
any disclosable pecuniary interests which they may have in 
respect of business on this agenda. None were declared.  
 

4. Minutes  
 

Resolved:  That the minutes of the Licensing Hearings held on 
the 27 February and 15 May 2017 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair.  

 

5. Determination of an Application by Punch Taverns Plc for 
Variation to Premises Licence Section 35 (3)(a) in respect of 
Fulford Arms, 121 Fulford Road, York, YO10 4EX (CYC-
008985)  
 

Members considered an application by Punch Taverns Plc for 
Variation to Premises Licence Section 35 (3) (a) in respect of 
Fulford Arms, 121 Fulford Road, York,YO10 4EX.  
 
In considering the application, and the representations made, 
the sub-Committee concluded the following licensing objectives 
were particularly relevant to this hearing:  
 
3. The prevention of public nuisance. 
 

Page 31



In coming to their decision, the Sub-Committee took into 
consideration all the evidence and submissions that were 
presented, and determined their relevance to the issues raised 
and the above licensing objectives, including: 
 

1. The application form, in particular the existing licence 
conditions and the additional steps agreed to be taken by 
the applicant in the operating schedule for the current 
licence to promote the four licensing objectives. 

 
2. The Licensing Officer’s report and her comments made at 

the Hearing. She outlined the application and advised that 
consultation had been carried out in accordance with the 
Licensing Act 2003. She also highlighted that there had 
been no representations made by responsible authorities 
and that three of the five written representations received 
from other persons had been withdrawn. In relation to the 
second bullet point of paragraph 5 of her report, the 
Licensing Officer clarified that the application is to remove 
condition 8 and not condition 7. 

 
3. The applicants representations at the Hearing, and those 

of their solicitor. The solicitor stated that the applicants 
had been operating for three and a half years and that the 
change of use had been ‘organic’, with music and events 
becoming a more significant part of the business. There 
was a community focus to these events, with many being 
for charitable purposes. There were occasional outdoor 
events but these were covered by Temporary Event 
Notices (TENs). It was felt that the outdoor events may be 
where some of the issues highlighted in the written 
representations had stemmed from. There had only been 
one complaint in respect of noise made to the 
Environment Protection Unit (EPU) which was over 12 
months old. This had been due to a door being left ajar 
and this had been rectified immediately, with no 
complaints since. The applicants had provided all those 
living in the block of flats opposite the premises with 
contact telephone numbers to use should they have any 
complaints. As none had been received, the applicants 
were confident that there was no disturbance from 
recorded music. The solicitor also advised the sub-
committee that the applicants were withdrawing their 
application for live music until 02:00.  
 

Page 32



4. The two of the five representations received in writing that 
had not been withdrawn (being those at pages 61 to 62 
and 68 of the Agenda papers).  

 
In respect of the proposed variations to the licence, the Sub-
Committee had to determine whether to take any of the steps 
mentioned under Section 35(4) that it considered necessary for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives. Having regard to the 
above evidence and representations received, the Sub-
Committee considered the steps which were available to them 
to take under Section 18(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 as it 
considered necessary for the promotion of the Licensing 
Objectives: 
 
Option 1:  Grant the variation to the licence in the terms applied  
for (which application excludes any variation to the current 
timings for live music) and including any applicable mandatory 
conditions of the Licensing Act 2003. This option was 
approved.  
 
Option 2: Grant the variation to the licence with 
modified/additional conditions imposed by the licensing 
committee including any applicable mandatory conditions as set 
out in ss19, 20 and 21 of the Licensing Act 2003. This option 
was rejected.   
 
Option 3:  Grant the variation to the licence to which the 
application relates and modify/add conditions accordingly to 
include any applicable mandatory conditions of the Licensing 
Act 2003 as amended. This option was rejected. 
 
Option 4:  Reject the application. This option was rejected as 
the Sub-Committee saw no reason to reject the application 
based on the Licensing Objectives and City of York Council 
Licensing Policy. The varied licence shall be subject to all the 
other conditions and the operating schedule for the current 
licence.  
 
In coming to their decision to approve Option 1, the Sub-
Committee was mindful of the fact that no representations had 
been received from responsible authorities and that three of the 
written representations received had been withdrawn before the 
hearing due to their concerns being addressed by the 
applicants. Outdoor events would be covered by Temporary 
Event Notices and the applicants had been proactive in writing 

Page 33



to significant numbers of local residents to inform them on the 
previous occasions where such events had taken place. There 
were several measures in place to minimise disturbance to local 
residents including temporary glazing and sole use of a side 
door when live music was taking place. They also noted that the 
applicants had withdrawn the application for live music until 
02:00, which addressed many of the issues contained in the 
written representations.  
 
The Sub-Committee concluded that the application was 
acceptable with the above mandatory conditions attached which 
addressed representations made both in writing and at the 
hearing, as it met all the licensing objectives. The Sub-
Committee made this decision taking into consideration the 
representations, the Licensing Objectives, the City of York 
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the Secretary of 
State’s Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillor Douglas, Chair 
[The meeting started at 10.15 am and finished at 11.15 am]. 

Page 34



 

 

  
 

   

 
Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee 
 

26 February 2018 

Report from the Assistant Director – Planning & Public Protection 

Section 18(3) (a) Application for a premises licence for Revolucion 
de Cuba, New Street, York, YO1 8ND 

Summary 

1. This report seeks Members determination of an application for the 
grant of a premise licence, which has been made under the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

2. Application reference number:   CYC-060019 

3. Name of applicant:   Revolucion de Cuba Ltd  

4. Type of authorisation applied for:   Grant of Premises Licence 

5. Summary of application:  The proposal is to allow for the provision of 
the following activities: 

Proposed Activity Timings 

Live Music (indoors) Sunday to Wednesday 
10:00 – 00:00 
Thursday 
10:00 – 01:00 
Friday & Saturday 
10:00 – 02:00 

Recorded Music (indoors) Sunday to Wednesday 
10:00 – 00:00 
Thursday 
10:00 – 01:00 
Friday & Saturday 
10:00 – 02:00 

Performances of Dance 
(indoors) 

Sunday to Wednesday 
10:00 – 00:00 
Thursday 
10:00 – 01:00 
Friday & Saturday 
10:00 – 02:00 

Page 35 Agenda Item 5



 

Late Night Refreshment 
(indoors) 

Sunday to Wednesday 
23:00 – 00:30 
Thursday 
23:00 – 01:30 
Friday & Saturday 
23:00 – 02:30 

Sale of alcohol (on & off sales) 
 

Sunday to Wednesday 
10:00 – 00:00 
Thursday 
10:00 – 01:00 
Friday & Saturday 
10:00 – 02:00 

Opening times Sunday to Wednesday 
10:00 – 00:30 
Thursday 
10:00 – 01:30 
Friday & Saturday 
10:00 – 02:30 

Non-Standard Timings for all 
licensable activities 

From the end of permitted hours 
on New Year’s Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on New Year’s 
Day. 
 
An additional hour on the 
evenings preceding a Bank 
Holiday. 
 
An additional hour on the day 
British Summer Time begins. 

  

Background 

6. A copy of the application is attached at Annex 1.  A copy of the plan 
of the premises is attached at Annex 2.  

 
       Promotion of Licensing Objectives  

7.  The operating schedule submitted by the applicant shows that the 
licensing objectives would be met as follows: 

8. General 

1) Staff shall be trained in the requirements of the Licensing 
Act 2003 with regard to the licensing objectives.  

 

Page 36



 

9. The prevention of crime and disorder   

1)  A CCTV system shall be maintained and operated at the 
premises with cameras positioned both internally and 
externally. 

 
2) Recorded CCTV images will be maintained and stored for a 

period of 28 days and shall be produced to the Police or 
Licensing Authority upon request. 
 

3) CCTV will be in operation at any time a person is in the 
premises.  Where CCTV is recorded onto a hard drive 
system, any DVDs subsequently produced will be in a format 
so it can be played back on a standard PC or DVD player. 

 
4) Any person left in charge of the premises must be trained in 

the use of any such CCTV equipment, and be able to 
produce CCTV images to an officer from a responsible 
authority upon request. 

 
5) SIA registered door supervisor(s) will be employed every 

Friday and Saturday from 21:00 until close.  At all other 
times SIA registered door supervisor(s) shall be employed at 
the premises at such times and in such numbers as a risk 
assessment, to be carried out by the DPS, deems necessary 
to control the entry of persons to the premises and for the 
keeping of order in the premises when they are used for a 
licensable activity.  When employed, door staff will wear high 
visibility armbands. 

 
6) SIA registered door supervisor(s) will be employed on all 

race days (unless prior consent has been obtained from the 
police that SIA are not required), from 17:00 until close. 

 
7) When employed, a register of those door staff employed 

shall be maintained at the premises and shall include: 
i. The number of door staff on duty; 
ii. The identity of each member of door staff; 
iii. The times the door staff are on duty. 
 

8) Staff will be trained in the laws relating to underage sales, 
and that training shall be documented and repeated at 6 
monthly intervals. 
 

9) A refusals book will be maintained at the premises, and 
made available to an officer of a responsible authority upon 
request. 

 
10) A representative of the premises will engage in any Pub 

Watch arrangement. 

Page 37



 

 
11) A member of staff will be responsible for monitoring the 

toilets on a regular basis from 19:00 to close Thursday to 
Saturday. 

 
12) A full meals menu and waiter/waitress service shall be 

available at the premises. 
 
10. Public Safety 
 

1) A first aid box will be available at the premises at all times. 
 

2) Regular safety checks shall be carried out by staff. 
 

3) Management shall liaise with the Fire Authority as necessary 
to ensure compliance with all necessary fire regulations. 

 
4) The premises shall maintain an Incident Log and public 

liability insurance. 
 

5) One pint and half pint capacity drinking glasses and highball 
tumblers shall be of strengthened glass. 

 
11. The Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 

1) Noise from amplified music or voices shall not be such as to 
cause a noise nuisance to occupants of nearby premises. 
 

2) No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be 
transmitted through the structure of the premises which 
gives rise to nuisance. 

 
3) The exterior of the building shall be cleared of litter at regular 

intervals. 
 

4) Notices will be positioned at the exits to the building 
requesting customers to leave in a quiet manner. 

 
5) Doors and windows at the premises will be closed, after 

23:00 daily, save for access and egress. 
 

6) A Dispersal and Smoking Policy will be implemented and 
adhered to (Policies attached to the application). 

 
7) The emptying of bins into skips, and refuse collections will 

not take place between 23:00 and 07:00. 
 

8) The external roof terrace area shall not be used outside the 
hours of 11:00 and 23:00 daily.  Staff and door staff (when 
employed) shall assist with the orderly clearing of the area 
prior to 23:00 daily. 

 

Page 38



 

9) There shall be no external regulated entertainment. 
 

10) The doors to the external roof terrace area shall be kept 
closed between 11:00 and 23:00 daily, save for access and 
egress and shall be kept closed between 23:00 and 11:00 
daily except in an emergency. 

 
11) The number of customers in the external roof terrace area 

shall not exceed 84 at any one time. 
 

12) There will be no public access into the external area at 
ground floor level on New Street when the premises are 
closed. 

 
12.   The protection of children from harm 
 

1) A “Challenge 21” Policy shall be implemented in full and 
appropriate identification sought from any person who 
appears to be under the age of 21.  The only acceptable 
forms of ID are photographic driving licences, passports, HM 
forces warrant cards, EU/EEA national ID card or similar 
document or form of identification with the “PASS” hologram. 
 

2) Staff training will include the “Challenge 21” Policy and its 
operation.  In particular, staff shall be trained to take such 
action as is necessary to prevent the sale of alcohol to 
persons over the age of 18 where those customers are 
engaged in the distribution of alcohol to persons under the 
age of 18.  The training must be given t a new member of 
staff before they commence employment and all staff must 
receive refresher training every 6 months.   

 
 Special Policy Consideration 

13.  This premise is located within the special policy area approved by 
full council on 27 March 2014. A copy of the policy is attached at 
Annex 3. 

     
Consultation  
 

14. Consultation was carried out by the applicant in accordance with 
s13, and s17 (5) of the Act and Regulation 42, Parts 2 and 4 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club Premises 
Certificates) Regulations 2005, which concern the displaying of a 
notice on the premises and an advertisement in a local paper giving 
details of the application and serving a copy of the application on all 
responsible authorities.  The applicant complied with all statutory 

Page 39



 

requirements.  In addition the relevant ward councillors and/or parish 
council were notified by way of register.    

15. All procedural aspects of this application have been complied with. 
 

Summary of Representations made by Responsible Authorities 
 
16.  North Yorkshire Police have made a representation on the grounds 

that the licensing objectives, Prevention of Crime and Disorder and 
Prevention of Public Nuisance will be undermined by the granting of 
this application.  The grounds for representation are: 

 
1) The application relates to a new premises licence in respect 

of a bar / restaurant in the centre of York’s Cumulative 
Impact Zone (CIZ).  An area which City of York Council has 
identified as being under stress from crime and disorder and 
public nuisance in its Statement of Licensing Policy. 
 

2) The location of the premises is on New Street, covering 
three floors including a roof terrace.  The venue has a 
substantial open floor plan, and has applied to be licensed 
until 02:30 hours on a Friday and Saturday.  The venue lies 
within a “hotspot Zone” surrounded by five licensed 
premises and a boutique hotel (Judges Court) which is 
adjacent to the site.  The applicant seeks opening hours on 
a Friday and Saturday of 02:30 hours, which is common for 
vertical drinking establishments and late night refreshment 
venues, but it is uncommon for a restaurant. 

 
3) The applicant has not provided any information as to why 

this application should be considered to be an exception to 
the CIZ policy and the applicant should demonstrate 
specifically, if they are to be issued a premises within the 
CIZ, how they would actively promote the licensing 
objectives.  Until this is demonstrated, the licensing policy 
advises that any application for an alcohol licence should be 
rejected. 

 
4) The plan shows a number of design and layout weaknesses, 

namely:- 

 Recessed ground floor outside drinking area (noise 
leakage, management by door staff eg pinch point at 
the main entrance). 

 Live highway directly outside premises (outside foot 
street hours). 

 Neighbouring pavement cafes. 

Page 40



 

 Toilets on first floor (no natural surveillance to mitigate 
crime and disorder). 

 External roof top terrace (capped capacity of 84 
persons, management of public nuisance and noise, 
smoking after 23:00hours when it must close). 

 Ground floor consists of a large open space (no fixed 
seating which means seating can be removed to 
enable vertical drinking). 

 Substantial bar on ground floor (not commonly 
associated with a server point in a restaurant). 
 

5) The conditions within the operating schedule appear generic 
and not tailored counter the problems associated with York 
city centre, more specifically they do not deal with how they 
seek to promote the licensing objectives within the CIZ in 
line with the licensing policy. 
 

6) Negative impact that adding yet another large capacity 
venue in the heart of York’s CIZ will have on current multi-
agency initiatives set-up to tackle York’s current issues 
within the city’s day and night-time economy. 

 
17. The Police representation is attached at Annex 4. 
 
18. City of York Licensing Authority has made a representation on the 

grounds that the granting of this application would undermine the 
licensing objectives of both prevention of crime and disorder and 
prevention of public nuisance.  Furthermore the applicant fails to 
demonstrate how this application would not add to the cumulative 
impact of licensed premises already experienced within the CIZ. 

 
19. The Licensing Authority representation is attached at Annex 5. 
 
20. City of York Council Public Protection (Environmental Protection) 

made a representation on the grounds that the prevention of public 
nuisance licensing objective would be undermined if the premises 
licence were to be granted in the terms applied for.  Public 
Protection withdrew the representation after mediation with the 
applicant who agreed the following conditions be attached to the 
licence if granted: 

 
1) Electronically amplified music emitted from the rooftop bar 

shall be played or reproduced through loud speakers and a 
tamper proof noise limitation device. 
 

Page 41



 

2) A direct contact number for the duty manager shall be made 
available to nearby premises on request. 

 
3) Any complaints received from local premises to be acted 

upon immediately. 
 

4) Any noise complaints to be logged in a log book and actions 
taken also logged. 

 
5) The log book shall be made available to the local authority 

on request.  
 

21. The Public Protection representation and agreement is attached at 
Annex 6. 

 
        Summary of Representations made by Other Parties  
 
22.  Relevant representations have been received from two other parties.  

The first representation is from a York resident and is attached at 
Annex 7.  The second representation is from a hotel adjacent to the 
subject premises and is attached at Annex 8.  Both representations 
are on the grounds that if the licence were to be granted it would 
undermine the licensing objective of prevention of public nuisance 
and would add to the problems already experienced by the number 
of licensed premises within the CIZ. 

23. A map showing the general area around the venue is attached at 
Annex 9. 

Planning Issues  
 
24. There are no outstanding planning issues. 
 

Options  

25. By virtue of s18(4) of the Act, the Committee have the following 
options available to them in making their decision: -  

26 Option 1:  Grant the licence in the terms applied for. 

27. Option 2: Grant the licence with modified/additional conditions 
imposed by the licensing committee. 

28. Option 3:  Grant the licence to exclude any of the licensable 
activities to which the application relates and modify/add conditions 
accordingly. 

29. Option 4:  Reject the application. 

Page 42



 

 
Analysis 

30. The following could be the result of any decision made this Sub 
Committee:- 

31. Option 1: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by 
any of the representors. 

 
32. Option 2: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by 

the applicant or any of the representors. 
 
33. Option 3:  This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by 

the applicant or any of the representors. 
 
34. Option 4:  This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by 

the applicant.  
 

Council Plan 
 

35. The Licensing Act 2003 has 4 objectives the prevention of crime and 
disorder, public safety, prevention of public nuisance and the 
protection of children from harm.   

36. The promotion of the licensing objectives will support the Council’s 
Plan for a prosperous city for all and a council that listens to 
residents.  

 Implications 

37.  

 Financial  - N/A 

 Human Resources (HR) – N/A 

 Equalities – N/A      

 Legal – This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court 
by the applicant or any of the representors. 

 
 Crime and Disorder - The Committee is reminded of their duty 

under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to consider the crime 
and disorder implications of their decisions and the authority’s 
responsibility to co-operate in the reduction of crime and 
disorder in the city. 

 

Page 43



 

 Information Technology (IT) – N/A 

 Property – N/A 

              Other – none     
 
Risk Management 
 

38. All Members of the Licensing Act 2003 Committee have received full 
training on the Act and the regulations governing hearings.  They 
are aware that any decision made which is unreasonable or unlawful 
could be open to challenge resulting in loss of image, reputation and 
potential financial penalty. 

 
39. The report details the options available to the panel in determining 

the application and recommends that a decision be reached.  There 
are no risks involved with this recommendation. 

  
 Recommendations 

40.  Members determine the application. 
Reason:  To address the representations received as required by 
the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
 
Contact Details 
 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the 
report: 

Lesley Cooke 
Licensing Manager 
 
Tel No. 01904 551515 

Mike Slater 
Assistant Director for Planning and 
Public Protection. 
 
 

Report 
Approved 

√ 
Date 22/01/2018 

    
Specialist Implications Officer(s)  
Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
Ext: 1004 
 

Wards Affected:  Guildhall   

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 

Page 44



 

 
Background Papers: 
 

Annex 1  -  Application form 
Annex 2  -  Plan of premises 
Annex 3  -  Special Policy  
Annex 4  -  North Yorkshire Police Representation 
Annex 5  -  Licensing Authority Representation 
Annex 6  -  Public Protection Representation & Mediated Conditions 
Annex 7  -  Resident Representation 
Annex 8  -  Hotel Representation 
Annex 9  -  Map of area 
Annex 10  -  Mandatory Conditions         
Annex 11  -  Legislation and Policy Considerations   

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 3 
 

CITY CENTRE SPECIAL POLICY STATEMENT 
 
This Special Policy was initially approved by the City of York on 12 April 
2005, revised and updated and approved by full Council on 27th March 2014.  
and shall have effect until 2019 unless otherwise reviewed by the Council. 
 
This Special Policy is a supplement to the Council's Statement of Licensing 
Policy and must be read in conjunction with that document. 
 
This area has been identified as requiring additional licensing controls to 
promote the licensing objectives due to the cumulative effect of the 
concentration of late night drink led, refreshment and entertainment premises 
on crime, disorder and/or public nuisance affecting residents, visitors and 
other businesses. 
 
A statistical, evidence based report was submitted by North Yorkshire Police 
to substantiate this statement and was considered by the City of York Council 
in approving this policy. 
 
Consultation on the Special Policy was carried out in accordance with Section 
5(3) of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
Effects of the Special Policy 
 
1. This policy relates to applications for the grant and/or variation of 

premises licences or club premises certificates or the issue of 
provisional statements. 

 
2. Each application will be considered on its own merits. 
 
3. Where no representations are received any application will be granted 

in terms consistent with the operating schedule. 
 
4. Applications for the grant of a new premises licence or club premises 

certificate or provisional statement:  
 
          Where relevant representations are received there will be a 

presumption against the grant of such a licence or certificate unless the 
applicant can rebut the presumption that the granting of such a licence 
or certificate would undermine the licensing objectives. 

 
5. Application for the variation of a premises licence or club premises 

certificate due to a change of style of operation: 

Page 73



 
Any application for the variation of style of operation which is subject to 
relevant representations will be considered on its own merits having 
regard to the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 
6. Application for the variation of a premises licence or club premises 

certificate resulting in an extension of the premises and increased 
capacity:  

 
There will be a presumption to refuse such applications, where relevant 
representations are received and where the increase in capacity would 
undermine the licensing objectives unless the applicant can rebut the 
presumption that the granting of such a variation would undermine the 
licensing objectives. 

 
7. Application to vary the hours of operation attached to a premises 

licence or club premises certificate:  
 

All applications that seek to extend the licensed hours will be 
considered on an individual basis.  No different policy will apply in this 
area as opposed to the rest of the city. 

 

Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank



 

        ANNEX 10  
 

 
MANDATORY & PROHIBITED CONDITIONS – PREMISES LICENCE 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
 
MANDATORY CONDITIONS WHERE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL   
 
1.  In accordance with section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003, where a premises licence 
authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must include the following conditions. 
 
2.  The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence - 

(a)  at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the 
premises licence, or 
(b)  at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence 
or his personal licence is suspended. 

 
3.   The second condition is that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be 
made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence. 
 
4.  (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, 
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 

(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following 
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or 
supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises – 

(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 
encourage individuals to – 

(i)   drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible 
person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 
(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 

(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a 
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or 
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a 
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in 
the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage 
or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any 
favourable manner; 
(e)  dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).  

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 
customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.  (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 
alcohol. 
     (2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that 
the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. 

Page 147



     (3)  The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before 
being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either – 
 (a)  a holographic mark, or 
 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 
 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that – 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the 
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance 
ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the 
following measures – 

  (i)   beer or cider: ½ pint; 
 (ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and 
 (iii) still wine in a glass: 125ml; 

(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is 
available to customers on the premises; and 
(c)  where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol 
to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available. 

 
MANDATORY CONDITION: ALCOHOL PRICING 
 
1.  A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off 
the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
2.  For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 – 

(a)  “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(6); 
(b)  “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula – 

P = D + (D x V) 
where – 
(i)   P is the permitted price, 
(ii)  D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were  
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value 
added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 

(c)  “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
premises licence – 

(i)   the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such 
a licence; 

(d)  “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a 
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 
(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added 
Tax Act 1994(7). 

 
3.  Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this 
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be 
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 
 
4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 

2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the 
second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 
(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of 
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second 
day. 

Page 148



MANDATORY CONDITION:  DOOR SUPERVISION 
 
1.  In accordance with section 21 of the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended by section 25 Violent 
Crime Reduction Act 2006), where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified 
times one or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, the licence 
must include a condition that each such individual must - 

(a)  be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security 
Industry Act 2001; or 
(b)  be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of that Act. 

 
2.  But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed - 

(a)  in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security 
Industry Act 2001 (c.12) (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films), or 
(b)  in respect of premises in relation to - 

(i)  any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises 
being used exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary 
event notice authorising plays or films or under a gaming licence, or 
(ii)  any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed 
by regulations under that Act). 

 
3.  For the purposes of this section - 

(a)  "security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies, 
and which is licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act (see section 3(2) of that 
Act), and 

(b)  paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as 
it applies in relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule. 

 
MANDATORY CONDITION: EXHIBITION OF FILMS 
 
1.  In accordance with section 20 of the Licensing Act 2003, where a premises licence 
authorises the exhibition of films, the licence must include a condition requiring the admission of 
children to the exhibition of any film to be restricted in accordance with this section. 
 
2.  Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless subsection (3)(b) applies, 
admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that 
body. 
 
3.  Where - 

(a)  the film classification body is not specified in the licence, or 
(b)  the relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that this 
subsection applies to the film in question, admission of children must be restricted in 
accordance with any recommendation made by that licensing authority. 

 
4.  In this section - 'children' means persons aged under 18; and 'film classification body' means 
the person or persons designated as the authority under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 
1984 (c.39) (authority to determine suitability of video works for classification). 
 
 

Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 11  

 

Legislation and Policy Considerations 

1. The following provisions of The Licensing Act 2003 apply to this application:  S4 
general duties of licensing authorities; s17 application for premises licence; s18 
determination of application for premises licence; s23 grant or rejection of 
application; ss19, 20 and 21 mandatory conditions; The Licensing Act 
(Mandatory Licensing Conditions) Order 2010; and The Licensing Act 2003 
(Mandatory Conditions) Order 2014.  

 
2. The following provisions of The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and 

Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005 apply to this application:  
Regulation 42, Part 2 (Premises licences) and Part 4 (General) relating to 
applications, notices and representations and advertisement of applications 
 

3. The following provisions of the Secretary of State’s guidance apply to this 
application:  Section 2 The Licensing Objectives; Section 9 Determining 
applications; Section 10 Conditions attached to premises licences and club 
certificates; and Section 13 Statements of licensing policy.  
 

4. The following paragraphs of the licensing authority’s statement of licensing 
policy apply to this application:  5.0 Applications for Premises Licences, Club 
Premises Certificates and Variations; 6.0 Guidelines for Applicants; 7.0 
Saturation and Cumulative Impact and 8.0 Licensing Hours. 

 
5. The Committee is reminded of their duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 

1998 to consider the crime and disorder implications of their decisions and the 
authority’s responsibility to co-operate in the reduction of crime and disorder in 
the city. 
 

6. The Committee is reminded that the Human Rights Act 1998 guarantees the 
right to a fair hearing for all parties in the determination of their civil rights.  The 
Act also provides for the protection of property, which may include licences in 
existence, and the protection of private and family life. 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Amended 15/01/15 

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank



Additional Information received from 

representor 

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

ROOF TERRACE AT THE FORMER BHS, YORK 

 

ACOUSTIC REPORT REVIEW 

 
 

 

O'NEILL ASSOCIATES 

 

AUGUST 2017 

 
 

 
 

Prepared By: 

Surface Property 

 

1C Swinegate Court East, 3 Swinegate, York YO1 8AJ 

T +44 (0)1904 682 770 l E contact@surface-property.co.uk 

W www.surface-property.co.uk 

Surface Property is a trading name of Arcus Consultancy Services,  

Registered in England & Wales No. 5644976 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
  

 

Page 155



Acoustic Report Review  

Roof Terrace at the former BHS, York  

O'Neill Associates Surface 

August 2017 Page 1 

1 INTRODUCTION 

An application to convert the former BHS store on New Street, York into a bar and 

nightclub was granted permission in April 2017.  Following this, an additional application 

(reference number 16/02639/FUL) for a roof top terrace and bar on the site has been 

submitted.  This application included an acoustic report undertaken by ACA Acoustics (ref: 

170604-R002) to assess noise impacts on the nearby noise sensitive receptors. 

This report is a review of the AQA Acoustics report submitted as part of the roof top 

terrace and bar application, to determine whether noise impacts have been properly 

assessed.  Each section of the AQA report has been reviewed in turn, and a summary of 

our findings provided at the end.  

2 REVIEW 

2.1 Consultation 

The ACA report does not include any reference to consultation undertaken with the York 

City Council environmental health department, or any other relevant consultees.  While 

not strictly necessary, consultation with environmental health can help inform consultants 

on any local issues, and any specific guidance that might be appropriate to assess against.   

2.2 Criteria and Method of Noise Assessment 

The report states that; 

‘There is no specific formal method for undertaking an assessment of noise from patrons 

potentially affecting nearby residential receptors’ 

The report goes on to reference other guidance, such as the NPPF, NPPG, BS 8233:2014 

and the Guidelines for Environmental Noise Impact Assessment as being suitable for the 

assessment of noise from the rooftop terrace and bar.  No reference is made to the 

Institute of Acoustics Good Practice Guide on the Control of Noise from Pubs and Clubs 

(2003).  This document provides guidance for the assessment and control of noise 

affecting noise-sensitive properties from the public use of clubs, discos and other similar 

premises.  The main sources considered in this document are music, PA systems, beer 

gardens, people in general and plant and machinery.  It is therefore our opinion that this 

guidance would cover a rooftop terrace and bar, where music will be played and people 

will presumably be talking and shouting, and as such should have been used to assess 

noise from the Development.  In addition to providing guidance on the control of noise, 

the document states that; 

‘for premises where entertainment takes place on a regular basis, music and associated 

sources should not be audible inside noise-sensitive property at any time.’ 

It is anticipated that because the bar/rooftop terrace will be open most nights it can be 

considered that entertainment will take place on a regular basis, and should therefore be 

inaudible inside noise sensitive receptors.   

  

Page 156



 Acoustic Report Review 

 Roof Terrace at the former BHS, York 

Surface O'Neill Associates 

Page 2  August 2017 

2.2.1 BS 8233:2014  

The AQA report goes on to reference BS 8233:2014 Guidance on sound insulation and 

noise reduction for buildings.  It reproduces Table 4 of BS 8233:2014, which provides target 

internal levels in bedrooms for sleeping and resting (35 dB LAeq16hour during daytime hours 

and 30 dB LAeq,8hour during night).  It should be noted however that immediately above this 

table, the standard states that; 

‘In general, for steady external noise sources, it is desirable that the internal ambient noise 

level does not exceed the guideline values in Table 4.’ 

It is not considered that music and patron noise from a bar/club is a ‘steady’ noise source, 

and as such, the target levels provided in the report are not appropriate to ensure impact 

on nearby receptors has been properly assessed.  It should also be noted that the 

BS 8233:2014 target levels ‘assume normal diurnal fluctuations in external noise’ and that 

in cases where the local conditions do not follow typical pattern (i.e. where levels increase 

significantly from approximately 6 – 11 pm while a bar is operational), an alternative 

period may be used.  The AQA report has not considered this. 

BS 8233:2014 states that in terms of regular individual noise events a guideline value may 

be set in terms of SEL or LAmax,f, depending on the character and number of events per 

night.  While no specific level is provided in BS 8233, the World Health Organisation’s 

Guidelines for Community Noise advises that: 

‘For a good sleep, it is believed that indoor sound pressure levels should not exceed 

approximately 45 dB,LAmax more than 10-15 times per night’.   

The ACA report does not take into account individual noise events, which from a rooftop 

terrace and bar are likely to be considerable.  It should also be noted that York City 

Council often set a more stringent noise limit of no individual noise event exceeding 50 

dB, LAmax at any point during night-time periods; again, this has not been considered in 

the AQA report.   

The ACA report states that: 

‘BS 8233:2014 advises that sound transmission through an open window limits the sound 

insulation through the façade to 15 dBA.’ 

While BS 8233:2014 does specify that an open window reduces insulation to 

approximately 15 dB (not dBA), it goes on to state that this can vary significantly 

depending on the window type and the frequency content of the external noise.  It should 

be noted that the ACA report does not assess the windows of the nearest receptor, or 

take into account the frequency content of noise from the development.  In this instance, 

the nearest window is single glazed unit, and the low frequency content of most modern 

music is likely to mean that in practice 15 dB reduction is unlikely to be achieved.  

2.2.2 Section 2.4 Guidelines for Environment Noise Impact Assessment 

In section 2.4 of the ACA report, it is stated that where there is no formal assessment 

methodology, a new noise source should be considered as to whether it is likely to cause 

a significant increase in the level and character of noise, compared to the existing ambient 

noise climate.  As discussed previously, it is considered that the IOA Guidance on Control 

of Noise from Pubs and Clubs provides guidance and a limit (inaudibility inside the 

nearest receptor), which is appropriate for this assessment.  

Page 157



Acoustic Report Review  

Roof Terrace at the former BHS, York  

O'Neill Associates Surface 

August 2017 Page 3 

The ACA report uses the Guidelines for Environmental Noise Impact Assessment to 

determine the significance of any change noise levels from a new noise source.  It argues 

that because the nearest receptor is a hotel (Judges Court Hotel), a relaxed criterion may 

be appropriate during daytime periods as residents are less likely to be in to room during 

daytime.  No context or judgement is used to justify this relaxed criterion.  The hotel has a 

history of noise complaints from hotel guests, which makes this receptor more sensitive, 

rather than less.    

The ACA report states that a moderate impact is acceptable during daytime hours, 

between 3 dB to 4.9 dB change in sound level.  A moderate impact, as described in Table 

4 of the ACA report would be in intrusive perception, where the noise impact can be 

heard and cause change in behaviour and/or attitude, with a potential for non-awakening 

sleep disturbance.    Given that hotel patrons already complain of sleep disturbance at 

times, any potential for increase in disturbance would not be acceptable. 

2.3 Background Sound Level Survey  

Section 4.1 of the report specifies that a background sound survey was undertaken 

between Friday 9
th

 and Monday 12
th

 June (i.e. a weekend period).  Due to the busy city 

centre location, it is likely that noise levels during weekend periods will be higher than 

those during weekday periods.  It is likely that the bar will be open throughout the week, 

and as such it is considered that the background survey, is not representative of the likely 

operating hours.  

The report does not contain any photographs of the equipment in situ, or drawings 

showing the location of the monitoring position.  There is no discussion of the existing 

sound environment, identification of the main noise sources or an explanation of why the 

equipment was placed in the selected location.  The report states that ‘the weather was 

primarily dry and calm’ however there is no explanation as to how this was determined 

(i.e. weather station?), or whether periods that were not dry were omitted from the results.  

Due to the elevated and exposed monitoring location, it is considered that wind could 

have a significant impact on the results, however no information on wind speeds during 

the survey has been provided.    

This information is generally required as best practice, in order to ensure that any 

monitoring is representative and easily replicable. 

2.4 Assessment of Noise from Roof Terrace and Bar 

In order to assess noise from the use of the roof terrace and bar, the report states that 

average conversational speech is 60 dB(A) at 1 m from the speaker, while raised voices are 

65 dB(A).  It is considered that noise from the use of a busy terrace, where patrons will be 

socialising and drinking, is likely to be at least the level of ‘raised voices’ and could often 

be nearer to ‘shouting’, which can be as loud as 78 dB(A) at 1 m1.  Again, maximum levels 

have not been considered as part of the assessment.  

The report states that a noise model was used to calculate an accumulation of 42 patrons 

talking simultaneously, which is understood to be half the total capacity of 84 people.  

Notwithstanding the fact that the patron noise levels could have been underestimated by 

some 13 dB, the report states that the model has been based on the terrace and bar at 

half capacity, which could further underestimate levels by around 3 dB in total.  It should 

                                                
1
 http://www.engineeringtoolbox.com/voice-level-d_938.html 

Page 158



 Acoustic Report Review 

 Roof Terrace at the former BHS, York 

Surface O'Neill Associates 

Page 4  August 2017 

also be noted that the capacity in the report is based on the number of seats, when in 

practice is it likely that a significant amount more people could be on the terrace if 

standing.  

The report states that the barrier is 2.6 m high, which also appears to be the height used 

in the calculations provided in Appendix A.  A drawing2 submitted as part of the 

development however shows this height as 2.1 m. 

Section 5 of the report states that: 

‘It is anticipated that no music would be played in the external roof terrace and that music 

in the second-floor bar will be played at ‘background’ volume only, such that it is inaudible 

outside nearby noise-sensitive receptors.’ 

The application should confirm that music would not be played in the external roof 

terrace, rather than anticipated.  No information is provided as to what ‘background’ 

volume is, or how it is assumed that it would be inaudible at the nearest property.  It 

would be a reasonably easy calculation to determine the maximum speaker level for any 

music by reverse calculating an inaudible level (e.g. NR15 internally) at the nearest 

receptor.  In our personal experience, this type of bar is unlikely to play music at 

‘background’ level, and music from the bar should be modelled as per other noise 

sources.  If necessary, a noise limit on music noise should be set to ensure the level 

remains at ‘background’. 

The report ends by stating that ’occasional individual shouts or laughter may be 

perceptible’, which is likely to be an understatement, and given the existing noise issues 

experienced by the Hotel, is not considered acceptable.      

3 CONCLUSION 

In summary, it is considered that the report submitted as part of the planning application 

does not fully assess noise from the roof bar and terrace, as follows; 

 The effects have noise have been assessed against incorrect criteria; 

 It does not consider the IOA Guide on the Control of Noise from Pubs and Clubs, 

which states that noise from clubs should be inaudible at the nearest noise 

sensitive receptors;  

 The limits contained in BS 8233:2014 are for the assessment of ‘steady’ noise 

sources; 

 The assessment does not take into account individual noise events or max levels 

which could interrupt and disturb sleep; 

 It does not consider the YCC criteria of no individual noise events exceeding 

50 dB(A) internally; and 

 Makes no assessment of the window of nearby receptors to determine whether 15 

dB reduction is likely to be achieved; 

 The assessment has not used best practice;  

 No consultation has been undertaken with York City Council; 

 The report argues that a relaxed noise criterion is appropriate, despite the hotel 

experiencing existing noise problems and therefore being more sensitive to 

additional noise;  

                                                
2
 17_01590_FUL_ELEVATIONS_AND_ROOF_PLAN_AS_PROPOSED-1894385 

Page 159



Acoustic Report Review  

Roof Terrace at the former BHS, York  

O'Neill Associates Surface 

August 2017 Page 5 

 The survey does not include a significant amount of information required as best 

practice to ensure measurements are representative and repeatable;  and 

 The background sound survey did not include quieter weekday periods, and 

therefore cannot be considered worst case; 

 The assessment underestimates predicted noise level from use of the bar and terrace. 

 Assessment assumes 65 dB(A) for raised voices, when the level could be as high as 

78 dB(A) for shouting;  

 Predictions based on the bar and terrace at half capacity, potentially 

underestimating results by around 3 dB; 

 Predictions have been based on a 2.6 m high barrier, while the elevations and roof 

plan drawing submitted with the application shows this barrier to be 2.1 m high; 

and 

 No assessment has been made of music from the bar, only states that music would 

be played at ‘background’ volume.  No information as to what this level is, or how 

it would be controlled is provided. 

Page 160


	Agenda
	1 Chair
	About CYC Licensing Hearings

	4 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes - 9 November 2017
	Minutes

	Minutes - 2 November 2017
	Minutes

	Minutes - 4 September 2017
	Minutes

	Minutes - 21 August 2017
	Minutes

	Minutes - 17 July 2017
	Minutes

	Minutes - 26 June 2017
	Minutes


	5 The Determination of an Application by Revolucion de Cuba Ltd for a Premises License (Section 18(3)(a)) in respect of New Street, York, YO1 8ND (CYC-060019)
	Annex 1 - Application Form
	Annex 2 - Plan
	Annex 3 - Special Policy
	Annex 4 - Police Rep
	Annex 5 - LA Rep
	Annex 6 - EPU Rep
	Annex 7a - JW Rep 1
	Annex 7b - JW Rep 2
	Annex 8 - Judges Court Rep
	Annex 9 - Plan of Area
	Annex 10 - Mandatory conditions
	Annex 11 -  Legislation & Policy
	Additional Information recieved
	Additional information recieved from representor




